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The Uniting Church in Australia
Synod of Victoria and Tasmania
Justice and International Mission Unit

130 Little Collins St Melbourne 3000 Phone: 03 9251 5271 Fax: 03 9654 2136

5 November2003
TheSecretary
JointStandingCommitteeon Treaties
Ri -109
ParliamentHouse
Canberra,ACT, 2600

DearSecretary,

I am writing on behalfof the Justiceand International Mission Unit, Synod of Victoria and
Tasmania,to welcomemoves towardsAustralia ratifying the InternationalLabour Organisation
Convention No.182: Convention concerning the Prohibition and ImmediateAction for the
Eliminationofthe WorstFormsofChildLabour.

We aredeeplysupportiveof anyactionto eliminateincidentsof exploitativeor abusivechild labour
in Australiaandoverseas.

The Gospelcalls on Christiansto protectand carefor children,a call which the Churchhasnot
alwaysupheldbut seeksto fulfil. The Old Testamentteachesthatexploitingworkersandthepooris
displeasingto Godandwe shouldnot acceptthebenefitof someoneelse’sexploitation.TheBible
callsChristiansto protectthevulnerableandto standin solidaritywith them.

We notethat ILO Convention182 hasbeenratified by 144 ofthe 177 ILO memberStatesandthat
Australiais theonly westernindustrialisedcountrythathasnotratified theConvention.

We remain concernedthat a number of States and Territories in Australia have insufficient
legislationto guaranteecompliancewith ILO Convention182 in the areasof Article 3(b) and3(d).
We areconcernedthat in a numberof Statesit remainslegal for childrenunderthe ageof 18 to be
employed and subjected to harm, abuse or exploitation in the pornographic and live sex
performanceindustry. Suchemploymentis clearly forbiddenby Article 3(b) of ILO Convention
182 and webelievesuchemploymentharmsthe moralsof children and assuchis a violation of
Article 3(d). We areparticularly concernedaboutthe positionof the ACT Governmenton this
matter.We haveraisedthematterdirectlywith theVictorianandTasmanianGovernments.

The Victorian Departmentof Justicehas replied on behalfof the Victorian Attorney General
acknowledgingthat children below 18 arenot completelyprotectedby law from beingexploited
throughpornographyor live sexperformances.It is anoffenceto procurea child under theageof
18 for thepurposesof making or producingchild pornography.Also somelive sexperformances $
maybeclassedasactsofprostitutionundertheProstitutionControlAct1994. It is anoffenceunder
Victorian law to causeor induceachild to takepart in anactofprostitution. It is alsoan offencefor
anoccupieror managerof premisesto allow childrenunder18 to enterorremainon the premises
for thepurposesoftakingpartin anactofprostitution.

We note that section s 128 of the TasmanianCriminal Code doesnot cover older children
performingin pornographicmoviesandperformances.The Class~JIcation(Publications,Films and
ComputerGames)EnforcementAct 1995 ss 73 dealswith offencesof procuringa child to makea
child abuseproduct,but only definesa “child” asonewho is agedunder16 years.We notethat s



128 of the Criminal Codeprovidesfor the offenceof procuration,but may not coverthesituation
wherethe employerhasnot recruitedthe child. It might cover the situationwherethe employer
offeredalargesumofmoneyto thechild, but relyingon suchaprovisionis not satisfactory.

We urge the CommonwealthGovernmentto takeall possibleaction to encourageand persuade
StateandTerritory Governmentsto introducelegislationthat will guaranteecompletecompliance
with the Conventionso thatAustraliacanratify theConvention.

Yours sincerely,

Dr Mark Zirnsak
ActingDirector
JusticeandInternationalMissionUnit
Phone:(03) 9251 5265
Fax: (03)96542136
E-mail: mark.zirnsak~vic.uca.org.au


